
All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained.  

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact Parks & Recreation Director, LuAnn Maisner:  
2100 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett, MI 48864 or 517.853.4600 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  

Meeting Location:  Meridian Service Center, 2100 Gaylord Smith Ct. Haslett, MI 48840 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PARK COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, May 10, 2022 4:30pm 

Meridian Service Center 
2100 Gaylord Smith Ct, Haslett 48840 

REGULAR MEETING – 4:30PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PRESENTATIONS
A. Capital Youth Cycling Association
B. Eagle Scout Project – Ethan Olds

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes

7. COMMUNICATIONS
A. The Power of Parks to Address Climate Change
B. Letter to Local Horse Farms Regarding Trail Usage
C. Resident complaint
D. Meridian Conservation Corps Evaluability Assessment

8. ACTION ITEMS
A. Eagle Scout Project Approval – Ethan Olds

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Horses on trails
B. Inclusive Playground
C. CIP – Capital Improvement Plan
D. Marshall Park Wetland Project

10. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS

12. OTHER MATTERS AND COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

14. SITE VISIT – 5280 OKEMOS ROAD 



5. Agenda
May 10, 2022

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


All comments limited to 3 minutes, unless prior approval for additional time for good cause is obtained.  

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact Parks & Recreation Director, LuAnn Maisner:  
2100 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett, MI 48864 or 517.853.4600 - Ten Day Notice is Required.  

Meeting Location:  Meridian Service Center, 2100 Gaylord Smith Ct. Haslett, MI 48840 

Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

AGENDA 
CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN  

PARK COMMISSION MEETING 
Tuesday, May 10, 2022 4:30pm 

Meridian Service Center 
2100 Gaylord Smith Ct, Haslett 48840 

REGULAR MEETING – 4:30PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER

2. ROLL CALL

3. PRESENTATIONS
A. Capital Youth Cycling Association
B. Eagle Scout Project – Ethan Olds

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS

5. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
March 8, 2022 Regular Meeting Minutes

7. COMMUNICATIONS
A. The Power of Parks to Address Climate Change
B. Letter to Local Horse Farms Regarding Trail Usage
C. Resident complaint
D. Meridian Conservation Corps Evaluability Assessment

8. ACTION ITEMS
A. Eagle Scout Project Approval – Ethan Olds

9. DISCUSSION ITEMS
A. Horses on trails
B. Inclusive Playground
C. CIP – Capital Improvement Plan
D. Marshall Park Wetland Project

10. DIRECTOR’S REPORT

11. PUBLIC COMMENTS

12. OTHER MATTERS AND COMMISSIONERS’ COMMENTS

13. ADJOURNMENT

14. SITE VISIT – 5280 OKEMOS ROAD 

5.



6. Approval of
Minutes

March 8, 2022
Meeting Minutes

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


CHARTER TOWNSHIP OF MERIDIAN 
PARK COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING 
Meridian Service Center 
2100 Gaylord C. Smith Court, Haslett, MI 48840 
TUESDAY, MARCH 8, 2022 4:30 PM 

1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
Chair Nardo-Farris called the meeting to order at 4:33 pm.

2. ROLL CALL
PRESENT: Chair, Mary Nardo-Farris; Commissioner, Mark Stephens; Commissioner, Mike
McDonald
ABSENT: Commissioner, Amanda Lick; Vice Chair, Ami Van Antwerp
STAFF: LuAnn Maisner, Director of Parks and Recreation; Jane Greenway, Senior Parks & Land
Management Coordinator

3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
None

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Commissioner Stephens moved TO APPROVE THE AGENDA AS SUBMITTED. Seconded
by Commissioner McDonald.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Commissioner McDonald moved TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF January 11, 2022 as
written.
Seconded by Commissioner Stephens.

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously.

6. COMMUNICATIONS
A. Redeemer Church Food Bank Thank you
B. DNR Five Year Parks and Recreation Master Plan Approval Notice
C. Deer Management Appreciation Letter

Commissioner Stephens moved TO ACCEPT AND PLACE COMMUNICATIONS ON FILE. Seconded by 
Commissioner McDonald. 

VOICE VOTE: Motion carried unanimously. 

7. ACTION ITEMS

None

6.



8. DISCUSSION ITEMS
Roundtable Discussion on Various Topics

• Okemos Road Acquisition, demo, site planning – Acquisition of land located at
5280 Okemos Road was completed in December with assistance from a Michigan
Natural Resources Trust Fund Grant.  A condition of the grant is that any structures
not used for recreation purposes must be taken down.  We have contracted with
Michigan Demolition and Excavation to remove the structure in the spring.  Now is
the time to review the site to determine a site plan that makes best use of the
property.  It was decided to walk the site as a group during the May 10, 2022 regular
meeting prior to discussing possible plans.

• Grant Programs Final Reimbursements (4) – we are happy  to report that all four
DNR grants have been officially closed and final reimbursements approved for t he
following projects: Gateway Footbridge and Restroom in the Historical Village;
Central Meridian Regional Trail Connector in Central Park; New Pavilion at HNC; New
Restroom Building at HNC. Congratulations Jane on completing and successfully
reporting these grant requirements.

• Deer Management Final Report – this document was distributed during the
meeting.

• Celebrate Meridian Festival – This event is returning on June 25, 2022 to Central
Park and Marketplace on the Green.  The day will be filled with children’s activities,
food, live music and fireworks!

• Meridian Heritage Festival-Plans are underway to once again present the Meridian
Heritage Festival on Saturday, October 1 in conjunction with the Friends of Historic
Meridian and Nokomis.

• Floating Islands in Central Park South Pond – Staff is researching companies to
request proposals for 2 floating purification islands for placement in Central Park
South pond.  These islands will be planted with live plants and anchored in the pond
to improve water quality. This is a budgeted project in 2022

• Build Back the Buffer Demonstration Project – Eagle Scout Project – Staff is
working with an Eagle Scout candidate to create a demonstration buffer at an area
around the pond’s edge in Central Park South.

• Love a Park Day – April 20 – Kati Adams and her staff are managing this project that
will take place in 8-9 park locations from 5-7pm on the 20th.  A volunteer appreciation
pizza party will follow at Marketplace. Volunteers will be able to register online.

• Drain Office Prescribed burns will take place again this spring in Towar Gardens
Neighborhood in the rain gardens including in Towar Park.

• ARPA Funding –  Meridian Township has received 4.5 million dollars in American
Rescue Plan funds from the Federal Government.  The Township Board will be
meeting soon to determine the process for deciding how to best use these funds.
Possible Park Projects for consideration include:

o Historical Village Building Maintenance
o Wind Screens at Marketplace
o Restroom Upgrades at Marketplace
o WIFI at Marketplace
o Skate Park
o Universally Accessible Playground Project

I will keep the Park Commission posted as more details become available. 



• 25th Anniversary of HNC July, 23, 2022 – A celebration will take place this summer
to recognize the 25th Anniversary of the Harris Nature Center!  The nature center has
been a valuable element in our park system that connects thousands of
schoolchildren with nature annually.  A formal recognition ceremony is scheduled for
Friday, July 22 for the media and elected officials with an all-day open house set for
Saturday with free  programs and activities throughout the day.

• HNC Native Plant Sale Fundraiser – this annual event is taking place now where
people can place their orders online and pick them up at the Nature Center in April.

• Emma- Native seed collection project- As we work to plant a “Native Meridian”,
Stewardship Coordinator, Emma Campbell organized multiple events last year where
volunteers harvested seeds from native plant in our land preserves.  These seeds
have been given to local native plant specialists to grow for us.  In the spring, they will
return the plants to us for planting in restoration areas on township properties.

• RecPro Registration Software – Our department has utilized a company named
ActiveNet as our recreation registration provider for over 15 years.  We are now
moving to a new company from Michigan called RecPro.  This system is used
nationwide in other communities and will save us an estimated $5,000 annually plus
also provide additional services that were not available to us with our current
provider.

• July is Parks and Recreation Month – Parks and Recreation has become more
popular since the pandemic as many people realized the value of parks for their
mental and physical health; and longing for special events for social gathering that
were paused for nearly two years.  Let’s look at creative ways to celebrate Parks in
2022 during July.

• Farmers Market Hours and Summer Concerts- Since the pandemic, the Farmers
Market has operated outdoors year-round.  The winter hours are expanding to 10am-
2pm until May 1.  Starting in May, the hours will expand to 8am-2pm.  Starting in
June, the Wednesday Market will resume along with live concerts on the Marketplace
stage in June, July and August.

• Community Services Millage Renewal – this millage supports Human Services,
Recreation and the Meridian Senior Center.  The Township Board has voted to place a
renewal request on the August Ballot in 2022.

• Parking lot work NMRP and CPS – Also budgeted this year is the expansion of the
parking lot at North Meridian Road Park and to resurface the entry drive in Central
Park South. Our Engineering Department is assisting with this project.

9. DIRECTOR’S REPORT – All items were covered during the roundtable discussion

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None
None 

11. ADJOURNMENT
Chair Nardo-Farris adjourned the meeting at 6:46 pm.

The next scheduled meeting is May 10, 2022 at the Meridian Service Center, 4:30 pm.

                  Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community.



7. Communications
A. The Power of Parks to Address Climate Change

B. Letter to Local Horse Farms

C. Resident Complaint

D. MCC Evaluability Assessment

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


7.A.





























Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

April 19, 2022 

Dear Park Neighbor, 

It has been brought to our attention by local residents that there has been an increasing 
amount of horse manure on the trails as well as damage from horses being on trails 
during the rainy season in Eastgate Park, Harris Nature Center and Legg Park.   

Our park trails are multi-use in nature, and accommodations may be necessary to 
maintain harmony among trail users.  Please use courtesy and a little extra care while 
using park trails. 

• If your horse drops manure on the trail, get off and clear it off the trail or use a
pail to collect and then remove the manure from the park.  Another option is to
use a horse manure bag.

• Clean up after your horse in the parking lot if you have transported your horse
using a trailer.  Do not leave manure or urine puddles lying about.  Bring a muck
bucket and a manure fork to clean up with.  Wash away urine with a few buckets
of water.

• Please refrain from using the natural trails during the spring and fall when trails
are wet and the most vulnerable to erosion.

Thank you for your help in maintaining our park trails. Please do not hesitate to contact 
me with any questions or concerns. 

Sincerely, 

Kati Adams 
Parks and Land Preservation Superintendent 
kadams@meridian.mi.us 
517.853.4616 

Meridian Township 
5151 Marsh Road 
Okemos, MI 48864 

P 517.853.4000 
F 517.853.4096 

Township Board: 

Patricia Herring 
Jackson 
Township Supervisor 

Deborah Guthrie 
Township Clerk 

Phil Deschaine 
Township Treasurer 

Scott Hendrickson 
Township Trustee 

Kathy Ann Sundland 
Township Trustee 

Marna Wilson 
Township Trustee 

Courtney Wisinski 
Township Trustee 

Frank L. Walsh 
Township Manager 

7.B.

mailto:kadams@meridian.mi.us


7.C.



Meridian Township: Meridian Conservation Corps

Evaluability Assessment

Deanna Fife & Hannah Rethamel

Grand Valley State University

Apr 19, 2022

7.D.



1

Introduction

The conservation of green spaces has increasingly become a part of the public consciousness in

recent history but preserving land and green spaces has always been an important part of good

stewardship and conservation. Keeping communities green not only benefits the earth, but it also

benefits the humans who reside on it; when humans and nature can live together in harmony, everyone is

better off. However, efforts to maintain green spaces are often demanding - local officials need to

contend with the weather, those who litter and otherwise destroy natural spaces, erosion, invasive

species, and other destruction. Oftentimes, passionate community members will strive to help combat

these issues, but find themselves stopped by a lack of resources, a lack of organization, or a lack of

knowledge about how best to go about these efforts. In order to help combat these problems, Meridian

Township established the Meridian Conservation Corps. The program brings community members

together with educational resources and others who are passionate about preserving the environment, so

that they can make an impact on the township's green spaces together (Meridian Conservation Corps).

This document is intended to provide an overview of the township and the Meridian

Conservation Corps, as well as the township’s readiness to engage in program evaluation and

recommendations for how to improve readiness. It will also look at the Meridian Conservation Corps

program and lay out recommendations for implementing program evaluation for this program

specifically.

The History and Mission of the Meridian Township & the Meridian Conservation Corps

Meridian Township, established in 1842, sits just east of Lansing. The township has 43,916

residents, according to the 2020 census, and covers 30.49 square miles, containing both Haslett and

Okemos within its borders (Demographics). When Lansing was made the Michigan state capital,



2

Okemos – then called Hamilton – became one of the places to stop when making the trip from Detroit to

Lansing, and Haslett, a farming community with a train station, experienced abundant growth (History).

The area is still experiencing growth today, having gained about 4,000 residents between the 2020

census and the 2010 census, and the township works hard to maintain the beautiful natural environment

that is a strong part of the local community.

Michigan is known for its beautiful natural environment; the state abounds with gorgeous

beaches, hiking trails, and massive green spaces. Many communities thrive on the quiet, rural feeling

that they provide to their residents, and Meridian Township is one of them. The township places a large

focus on this saying,

Meridian Township residents enjoy quiet, safe, and well maintained connected

neighborhoods with plenty of parks, pathways, and recreational opportunities for visitors

and families to enjoy. With natural beauty on roads, interurban pathways, and vibrant

business districts, Meridian Township is a great atmosphere for families, seniors, and

young professionals. (Community)

In accordance with this, many of the programs conducted by Meridian Township are aimed at preserving

the natural environment. The township offers a large system of parks, a nature center, a wetland

protection program, a deer management program, and the Meridian Conservation Corps, which “is a

program devoted to increasing community involvement in our parks and preserves” (Meridian

Conservation Corps). Harnessing the efforts of well-intentioned community members concerned about

conservation and preserving their home is a tall order, but it is one that the Meridian Conservation Corps

(MCC) was created to fulfill. The MCC offers four ways to be involved. Each of these four programs



3

offers different ways for township residents to get educated and get involved in the preservation and

stewardship of Meridian Township’s natural spaces, making the community overall a better place.

The township certainly has plenty of green space to focus on preserving. With 1,600 acres of

land that needs care, bringing together the passion of community members to help care for the land, and

the resources and information that the township provides is a crucial goal for those who want to

maintain the local natural spaces. The Meridian Conservation Corps aims to fill that need, and the

program aims to “turn intention into action” (Meridian Conservation Corps) to help connect citizens

with the tools they need to help preserve the township’s green spaces.

All the goals of the Meridian Conservation Corps align well with the township’s vision, which

reads that the township strives to be

a destination for raising families, Meridian Township’s vision is to achieve and maintain

a sustainable and welcoming community with the highest quality of life for our residents.

This encompasses protecting our natural environment and our health and safety, and

enhancing our prosperity, cultural heritage, diversity and recreational opportunities.

(Welcome to Meridian Township)

The township is home to “over 904 acres of parks, 956 acres of land preserves and nearly 20 miles of

trails within the parks” (Parks & Recreation). Protecting and preserving that land is a crucial part of

what township staff engages in, but it is more than the staff can do alone. Thus, the Meridian

Conservation Corps was created in 2020 to concentrate the efforts of local community members in one

place. Unorganized but passionate individuals may be able to make small amounts of progress towards

the preservation of their community, but by bringing the many passionate members of the community

together, the township and ensure that community members are able to direct their efforts in a



4

productive and informed way. By providing chances for people to work together in a way that they

choose to get involved and giving them the opportunity to be educated about the conservation efforts

they are engaging in, staff and use the Meridian Conservation Corps to ensure that the ongoing

preservation efforts are conducted well, and are coordinated in order to get the most from the resources

that the community is willing to provide – their manpower.

Major Sources of Support

Meridian Township has a fairly large budget, with an estimated $24.7 million in revenues

with 164 regular full time equivalent positions and 49 seasonal/temporary positions. The

township’s funding is derived mostly from taxes, with $14.4 million dollars or 60% of their

budget from that source. The next largest revenue source is intergovernmental revenues,

primarily from the federal government. The other fairly large revenue source is charges for

services which includes things like ambulance fees and public works services.



5

(Meridian Township, 2021, p. 30)

The Recreation and Culture department within the Township is a relatively small portion

of the overall budget with approximately $1.2 million in expenditures. “Parks, recreation, and

land preserves are funded and maintained primarily through the Park Millage and the General

Fund. Meridian Township has millages that support parks, pathways, seniors, land preservation,

and recreation. (Meridian Township, b, p. 19) Of the funding available to the township there are

a number of millages specific to parks work. These include the park millage, pedestrian walkway

millage, and land preservation millage among others. The township also pursues grant activities

and works to engage volunteers to maximize their impact. The parks department has 8 regular

staff people. All parks related volunteer efforts are coordinated through the MCC, and there are

volunteer events at least biweekly nearly year around.

Organizational Evaluability Assessment

Program evaluation requires resources to be done well; staff must be well trained in the subject,

resources must be dedicated to it, and data must be collected and analyzed. No organization can sit down

to engage in program evaluation overnight; the process takes time, effort, and planning. However, the

benefits of program evaluation far outweigh the effort that it requires. Organizations that conduct their

own program evaluation control the timeline of evaluation, the quality, and don’t need to contract with

outside organizations to evaluate how well their programs are performing.

At the time of writing, Meridian Township does not engage in any form of formal program

evaluation. The township staff are passionate about making their programs the best that they can be, but

they are unfamiliar with the formal terminology and methods of program evaluation. Their programs



6

lack logic models and formal program theories, and while significant efforts are made to collect data on

the programs, the assessment of that data is generally unstructured.

While the township does not formally engage in program evaluation, the culture amongst the

staff is one that is dedicated to improvement and open to new ideas. The township does not want for

innovative programs that strive to take the existing resources that they have access to – such as invested

community members – and use them in a way that is beneficial to everyone. Organizational learning

does not occur on a formal level, but the continued development of new programs, which are developed

with the aid of surveys and in-depth five-year plans, highlight the staff’s dedication to continued

improvement, even if the formal academic elements are lacking.

There are no resources currently available for program evaluation, as there has been no push to

engage in the process formally. However, leadership in the township is open to the idea, and if the

resources could be set aside by township officials, staff seems willing to engage in evaluation capacity

building – they simply need to be given the tools and knowledge with which to begin the process.

Overall, Meridian Township seems like an excellent candidate for formal program evaluation to be

undertaken, as staff is dedicated and invested in continued improvement.

If the township were to undertake efforts to engage in evaluation capacity building (ECB), they

would need to formulate the policies and procedures to govern evaluation. While there are many things

the township engages in that could be used in the evaluation plan, beginning the process with written

policies and procedures is crucial to the evaluation process, and to ensuring the existence of ECB. The

township would need to create and ECB oversight group to monitor the process, and determine which

members of the staff will participate in the evaluation process, then determine how many additional staff

members will be necessary to properly perform the evaluation and ECB activities. Michigan State



7

University could provide many resources to the township that could assist with evaluation, and could

help ensure that in the early stages of ECB, township staff does not become overwhelmed.

Other structures contribute to an organization’s success in ECB; Meridian Township will need to

create an ECB plan which details the ways and means which the township will continue to engage with

the evaluation process and ECB. Evaluation and ECB will need to be integrated into the culture,

something that can be instituted with top-down enthusiasm from leadership. Finally, ECB will need to

be worked into the strategic planning for the township, in order to ensure that ECB is considered during

all stages of growth and development for the organization. Each of these changes can be built off of the

others, giving Meridian a better understanding of its ECB and more control over how the township

engages in its programs and planning.

Introduction to the Program

The Meridian Conservation Corps is a fairly new program, created in 2020 to serve as the

conduit through which citizens can volunteer to work on environment/parks efforts in Meridian

Township (Meridian Township, b, p. 98) This program allows the township to harness the time,

talent and expertise of the citizens to assist in managing the physical environment. The vision of

the township is “to achieve and maintain a sustainable and welcoming community with the

highest quality of life for our residents. This encompasses protecting our natural environment

and our health and safety, and enhancing our prosperity, cultural heritage, diversity and

recreational opportunities.” Clearly prominent in that vision is the protection of the environment.

The Meridian Conservation Corps program directly and meaningfully contributes to that vision.

The MCC program actually consists of a number of smaller sub-programs or recurring

events which each contribute to the overall goals of the program, which are outlined in this

paragraph from their website:



8

The Meridian Conservation Corps is a program devoted to increasing community

involvement in our parks and preserves. It is a vehicle to grow awareness of volunteer

opportunities involving the care and conservation of Meridian Township’s local green

spaces. These places will grow on their own, but in order to thrive we need to take care of

each aspect of their health. Natural areas are important for the physical and mental

well-being of human life. We need nature and nature needs us. This program aims to

utilize the community’s knowledge and passion and gather it into one concentrated place:

the conservation corps! (Meridian Township, a, p. 1)

The Meridian Conservation Corps is divided into four sub-programs, the first of which is forest

watch, which enables citizens to choose an area of a park or preserve to monitor. This program

also encompasses some citizen scientist efforts where data is collected and submitted to

university or state environmental tracking efforts like vernal pool monitoring. Second is the

clean-up crew, which encourages residents to collect and report litter in the township’s natural

spaces. The trail blazers focus on maintaining trails and creating new ones. They also work on

trail accessibility, markers and mapping. Finally, the invasive species strike team, which focuses

on educating citizens about invasive species and helps combat them by removing plants and

mapping the areas where they appear (Meridian Township, a).

Evaluation Plan for the Meridian Conservation Corps

A good program evaluation plan centers around having a clear understanding of what

stakeholders want to program to be and what the desired outcomes are. To that end we have laid

out the program theory, a comprehensive logic model, and an evaluation framework with data

collection methods.

Program Theory



9

Since the MCC is an umbrella program that holds several smaller sub-programs,

identifying and modeling one program theory of change is challenging. Instead we have modeled

the theory of change for each of the four major efforts.



10

Logic Model

Again, because the MCC is a cluster of smaller programs the logic model displays many

activities, outputs and outcomes. Several of the outcomes are contributed to by all efforts (i.e.

citizens having positive experiences with the parks) and some are more specific to a certain

sub-program (i.e. catching environmental changes).



11

Evaluation Framework

The evaluation framework lays out the outcomes that have been identified as desired and

expected from the program and shows where the data will come from and how it will be

measured. Meridian Township already has extensive resident surveys and many of the outcomes

can be measured either using existing survey questions or by adding or modifying survey

questions or their analysis to glean a little more information.

Meridian Conservation Corps Evaluation Framework

Outcome Indicators Data Sources Data Collection
Methods

Increased
volunteerism

At least 5 new
volunteers per month
and an average of 1
first time volunteer
at each event.

Volunteer sign up
tracking excel, event
registrations and
attendance rosters.

A simple excel
spreadsheet could be
used to log the
volunteers who sign up
for the overall program
and those who attend



12

events. First time
attendees would be
flagged.

Citizens will
continue to be
willing to approve
parks millages and
otherwise support the
township's parks
programs.

Millages approved.
Interim indicator:
positive results on
surveys, particularly
in regard to park
funding.

Election results.
Parks and Recreation
Community Survey
(P&R Survey).

Election results will be
generated by the
township clerk’s
office. Add a question
specific to funding on
the survey.

Citizens will have
consistently positive
experiences with the
parks and will spend
more time in healthy
outdoor recreation.

Increase visitor
traffic at parks.
Increased reported
use of parks on
surveys.

P&R Survey. Visitor
counts.

The existing survey
asks questions about
park usage, so
continue to administer
that. Additionally,
begin to count the
number of vehicles
visiting the parks on
select low and high
traffic days.

Positive attitudes of
citizens towards the
township will
continue and grow.

Positive results on
citizen surveys.

Citizen Survey
Overall approval
rating. Overall parks
rating.

Improved knowledge
of MCC programs

Increased % of
people reporting
knowledge of
program

P&R Survey or new
mini-survey

QR code accessible
surveys posted in
general public and
park locations.

Natural spaces are
maintained without
an increase in the
presence of invasive
plant species.

The same or fewer
invasive plants
counted.

Professional
inspection

A bi-annual inspection
of a sample of park
locations to estimate
invasive plant
population change
using distance
sampling methods.

Reduction in the
number of invasive
plants.

Bags of invasive
plants removed

Program manager
event/activity log

Count of bags of
invasive plants
removed at each event



13

Increased ability of
residents to identify
and remove invasive
species on their own.

Self-reporting by
residents on survey

Participant Survey

Email survey to
participants of the
Invasive Species
Strike Team asking
them about removal of
invasive plants outside
the events.

The parks will be
enjoyed and used by
the public.

Continue high survey
scores on park and
preserve usage and
increase the
proportion of people
reporting 20+ visits
each year.

P&R Survey
Survey question about
park and preserve
usage.

Trail issues are
reported to the parks
department so that
prompt action can be
taken.

An initial response to
the reported issue
within 5 business
days 90% of the
time.

Excel log of received
reports of park issues
and action steps
taken to resolve with
dates.

Measure initial
response days from the
log.

Residents and
visitors will be better
able to access trails.

At least 5%
improvement in
accessibility score
each year.

P&R Survey.
Accessibility visits
which generate an
accessibility score.*

Bi-annual accessibility
visits with feedback
from accessibility
testers both interview
style and scored
survey.

Residents and
visitors will have
new trails to try on
an ongoing basis.

5 miles of new trails
each year.

Measure and monitor
miles of trails.

Existing park
inventory could be
utilized to report on
this data.

Increase data
available for state
and other analysis

Increase in data
reported to other
agencies

State of Michigan
and MSU provided
data.

Request report from
central data collections
agencies on data
generated from the
township's geographic
area. Compare year
over year.

Catch environmental
changes sooner and
take appropriate
action to protect the

Feedback from
sponsor
organizations that
sufficient data has

Sponsor
organizations, State
of Michigan,
Michigan State

Sponsor feedback



14

environment. been collected for
the area.

University

*Accessibility visits would be a walk-through of the park/trail with people with various
accessibility challenges like toddlers, people with limited vision, wheelchairs, strollers, mobility
challenge and others.

Conclusions

The people working for Meridian Township are incredibly dedicated and hardworking,

but they lack the formalized knowledge to engage in proper program evaluation and ECB. This

initial evaluation concludes that while the staff does engage in many of the activities that would

be necessary to include in proper evaluation, and that could contribute to effective evaluation

capacity building, those pieces are not put together in a way that produces any sort of

acknowledged, formal, program evaluation. The lack of terminology and academic knowledge

about program evaluation and how it can help the organization grow is what is holding the staff

back; county employees are already engaging in activities such as data collection, stakeholder

consultation, and have clearly had the discussions that would lead to things like program theories

– but none of these activities are formalized, and the individual dots are not connected to actually

evaluate the programs.

Additionally, the staff is already doing a lot with a relatively small number of employees.

The township manages an extremely high number of parks and other green spaces, and

maintaining that land requires an enormous amount of work. This is coupled with a high number

of programs, such as the Meridian Conservation Corps. The MCC is one program which contains

four sub programs and is far from the only program the township staff is engaged in running.

Evaluation is a long process that the programs of the township would clearly benefit from, but



15

evaluating each program would be a massive effort, especially starting the process from scratch,

as an evaluator would be.

Meridian Township needs the formalized knowledge of someone trained in program

evaluation and evaluation capacity building in order to make their culture one that is

knowledgeable of the evaluation process. At this time, while evaluation would likely be well

received by existing township staff, there is not enough formal knowledge on the subject for the

township to engage in the process in a beneficial way. However, once program evaluation is

introduced to the township, it is likely that it will quickly be adapted into the culture, as it is

already governed by staff who believe in constant improvements and are continuously striving to

improve their offerings in order to better serve their constituents.

Recommendations

There are many small steps that can be taken to both improve the capacity of the

township to engage in program evaluation and to formalize the use of program evaluation for the

Meridian Conservation Corps. The recommendations are intended to provide a number of

options to consider, but it is not necessary to use them all.

Recommendations to Maximize Evaluation Capacity Building

Evaluation capacity building (ECB), defined as “The intentional work to continuously

create and sustain overall organizational processes that make quality evaluation and its uses

routine (Baizerman, Compton & Stockdill, 2002 p. 109)” is a new concept to Meridian

Township. While township staff are largely unaware of the concepts of program evaluation, they

are already engaging in a number of activities that would make a move to formal implementation

of program evaluation much easier. They collect a lot of citizen/resident feedback as well as

other community and parks data and engage in extensive planning activities. They regularly



16

engage consultants and other third parties to assist with surveying and planning efforts as well.

Staff seem open to learning more about evaluation. The introduction of some formal evaluation

concepts would allow the township to make small changes to their current activities which would

allow them to measure progress towards program goals. The following are recommendations

regarding growing the evaluation capacity of the township.

- Begin by collecting baseline data from township staff on how township policies,

leadership, and structures are and are not supportive of evaluation and what level of

knowledge people have about evaluation today. This could be done using the “The

Readiness for Organizational Learning and Evaluation Instrument (ROLE)” survey or

something similar (Preskill & Torres, 1999).

- This would flag areas most in need of improvement or attention.

- This also allows the township to measure change and growth to determine the

effectiveness of ECB efforts.

- Engage in evaluation training and learning activities for all staff, particularly managers

and program leads.

- Make time for staff to discuss how programs could be evaluated and what small changes

could be made that would help them evaluate their work. Setting aside time for this work

generally takes a concerted effort and may not happen organically.

- Consider hiring an outside evaluator or creating a full-time evaluator position on the staff.

Township staff seem very professional and engaged, but they are also very busy. Adding

a resource to help with evaluation capacity building would help minimize additional work

for already busy staff people.



17

- If engaging the full township in evaluation capacity building (ECB) seems too daunting,

given the variety of activity types (police, parks and recreation, etc.) and different

physical locations, consider using one department as a test and then launching township

wide.

Recommendations to Formalize Program Evaluation for the Meridian Conservation Corps

Similar to ECB efforts, beginning formal program evaluation efforts for the Meridian

Conservation Corps program would only take modest changes. This is due to the sophistication

of the program, the planning efforts that the department undergoes in creating their 5 year master

plan and the citizen input that they are already receiving through surveys. The following are

recommendations for formalizing program evaluation for the MCC.

- Create an evaluation implementation plan

- We recommend that the township either hires an outside evaluator or creates a

program evaluation position on the township staff. With the size of the budget and

the number of employees a staff evaluator would not be unreasonable.

- A staff evaluator could be assisted by students, volunteers or members of the

various township boards to add capacity.

- Include staff time and budgetary resources needed for the evaluation process in

the next budget cycle.

- Use the Meridian Township Parks and Recreation Master Plan as a starting point

- Tie the goals of the MCC to the goals laid out in the master plan. The master plan

is very detailed, is based on lots of citizen input and has three pages of goals and

objectives. As the overarching strategic document of the parks department,

programs within that department should tie back to the master plan.



18

- Consider updating the master planning process in the future to incorporate an

evaluation framework that would lay out their desired outcomes, how they will

know if the outcomes are achieved (indicators) and what data they will be

collecting and analyzing to measure their progress. It isn’t immediately clear from

the master plan itself how they will measure success.

- Include building in evaluation tools and measures in future contracts for master

plan assistance. Those tools could be part of the master plan or a separate

supporting document.

- Use existing survey tools to gather even better data for evaluation of the MCC

- Add a question that specifically asks about citizen support of parks millages. The

public may support a higher millage rate than anticipated which would make even

more funding available for the parks programs.

- Use QR codes posted at park locations to gather feedback from people using the

parks. The township already has QR code accessible surveys and could expand on

this if additional surveys are needed or if they want to ensure survey results are

from true park users.

- Seek stakeholder input specifically on the MCC

- Particularly engage community members with disabilities or accessibility

challenges for input in the planning stages and to do walk throughs of parks and

trails with township staff. Accessibility was a focus in nearly all the township’s

planning documents for this year.

- Document and share the goals of the MCC



19

- The MCC has a really nice paragraph about why it exists and it’s purpose, but no

formal goals. Having the goals in writing is an essential part of evaluating how

successful the program is. The program logic model documents the goals, but it

should be reviewed and edited as needed.

- Focus the most effort on capturing the most important outcomes data.

- The township is awash in volunteers for this program. While it would be great to

know how volunteers find the program and if more volunteers are joining, it is

probably less important than monitoring the impact on invasive species for

example.

While the process of beginning formal program evaluation can be daunting, the staff at Meridian

Township has proven to be dedicated to consistent improvement and the betterment of their

community, providing them with a culture that values the qualities necessary to successfully

engage in program evaluation and ECB. Although the process of program evaluation is never

without bumps in the road at the beginning, the values that already make Meridian Township a

place where large programs are undertaken with great success will help make program evaluation

a central feature of the programs the staff engage in running.

Local programs and government already having citizen support will also aid the township

in beginning the process of program evaluation - evaluation efforts are unfortunately never free,

and the funding for the process will need to come from somewhere in order to ensure that

existing staff are not pushed beyond their limits; as hardworking as they are, increasing their

burden with program evaluation could be highly detrimental to the health and happiness of the

staff. Instead, the township will need to make decisions on who will conduct the evaluation;

someone with expertise in program evaluation will need to be hired - permanently, or as a



20

contractor - to lead the efforts and create a culture of evaluation at the township. However, once

the township has gone through with the work of beginning the program evaluation process, it is

likely that ECB and program evaluation will naturally and easily become a part of the culture for

Meridian Township.



21

References

Baizerman, M., Compton, D. W., & Stockdill, S. H. (2002). New Directions for ECB. New

Directions for Evaluation, 93, 109. https://doi.org/10.1002/ev.45

Cobalt Community Research. (2021, September). Meridian Township resident survey and

priority assessment. Retrieved from

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/24487/637805132755586919

Community. (2022). Meridian Township, MI. https://www.meridian.mi.us/community

Demographics. (2022). Meridian Township, MI.

https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/demographics

History. (2022). Meridian Township, MI. https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/history

Meridian Conservation Corps. (2022). Meridian Township, MI.

https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/parks-recreation/meridian-conservatio

n-corps

Meridian Township. (2021). 2022 Budget Charter Township of Meridian. In Meridian Township.

Retrieved from

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/23866/637744879481530000

Meridian Township. (n.d. a). Meridian Conservation Corps. In Meridian Township. Retrieved

from

https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/parks-recreation/meridian-conservatio

n-corps

Meridian Township. (n.d. b). Parks and Recreation Master Plan 2022-2026. In Meridian

Township. Retrieved from

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/24162/637781922817970000

https://doi.org/10.1002/ev.45
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/24487/637805132755586919
https://www.meridian.mi.us/community
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/demographics
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/history
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/23866/637744879481530000
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/parks-recreation/meridian-conservation-corps
https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/parks-recreation/meridian-conservation-corps


22

National Parks Service. (2022, March 22). Invasive Plant Species Monitoring. In National Parks

Service. Retrieved from https://www.nps.gov/im/medn/invasive-plants.htm

National Research Center Inc; ICMA. (2018). The national citizen survey Meridian Charter

Township, MI. In 2018 Meridian Township Citizen Survey Community Livability Report.

Retrieved from

https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/16881/636849910205770000

Parks & Recreation. (2022). Meridian Township, MI.

https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us/departments/parks-recreation

Preskill, H. & Torres, R. T. (1999). Evaluative Inquiry for Learning in Organizations. Thousand

Oaks, CA: Sage

Richardson, Alice (2007) An Active Tutorial on Distance Sampling, Journal of Statistics

Education, 15:1, DOI: 10.1080/10691898.2007.11889456

Welcome to Meridian Township. (2022). Meridian Township, MI.

https://www.meridian.mi.us/about-us

https://www.nps.gov/im/medn/invasive-plants.htm
https://www.meridian.mi.us/home/showpublisheddocument/16881/636849910205770000
https://doi.org/10.1080/10691898.2007.11889456


8. Action Items

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


Providing a safe and welcoming, sustainable, prime community. 

To: Park Commissioners 

From: LuAnn Maisner CPRP, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Date: May 5, 2022 

Re: May 10, 2022 Meeting Information 

PRESENTATIONS 

A. Capital Youth Cycling Assoc. – Donation check for the Pump Track at Eastgate Park.
B. Eagle Scout Project – Ethan Olds: Buffer Project Central Park South Pond 

ACTION ITEMS 

A. Eagle Scout Project Approval – MOVE TO APPROVE THE PROPOSED EAGLE SCOUT PROJECT 
BY ETHAN OLDS OF DEVELOPING A NATURAL BUFFER AREA IN CENTRAL PARK SOUTH AND 
WORK UNDER THE DIRECTION AND ADVISEMENT OF EMMA CAMPBELL, STEWARDSHIP 
COORDINATOR.

DISCUSSION ITEMS 

A. Horses on Trails – We have experienced numerous complaints over the years from park users
and concerns from staff about horse damage and droppings left on the multi-use trails in Meridian
Riverfront Park. Horses are allowed by Ordinance currently but posted trail advisories against use
during wet weather conditions seem to be ignored by many.  Letters were sent to adjacent horse
farms on Meridian Road requesting that horse droppings need to be removed.

B. Inclusive Playground – As we look forward to the 2023 budget process, an inclusive
playground was identified need in the Parks and Recreation Masterplan 2022-2027 process. Visit
this link for a great article on this topic: https://nextcity.org/urbanist-news/playgrounds-designed-
with-accessibility-in-mind-make-play-fun-for-every-kid

C. Capital Improvement Program – The Meridian Township Budget Process begins in June and
the CIP is part of this process. Now is the time for you to review the plan from last year and begin
discussions on changes, additions or deletions for project planning for the next six years.

D. Marshall Park Proposed Wetland Enhancement Project – Marshall Park, located adjacent to
Lake Lansing, is wet and soggy for most of the year, which makes it difficult to maintain.  This area
used to be utilized as a practice soccer field. Over the years, had become too wet.  Stewardship
Coordinator, Emma Campbell is proposing a project to plant wetland plants that are supported by
these conditions.  She will be in attendance to present the project.

8.A.

https://nextcity.org/urbanist-news/playgrounds-designed-with-accessibility-in-mind-make-play-fun-for-every-kid
https://nextcity.org/urbanist-news/playgrounds-designed-with-accessibility-in-mind-make-play-fun-for-every-kid


9. Discussion Items
A. Horses on Trails
B. Inclusive Playground
C. CIP - Capital Improvement Plan
D. Marshall Park Wetland Project

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


9.A.















9.C.



9.D.



Marshall Park Wet Meadow Proposal 
 

A wet meadow in Marshall Park was originally discussed as a way to reduce mowing in parks. 
There are some areas of park land that remind saturated or with standing water for the majority of 
the year. Marshall Park has a high water table, which makes it difficult to mow throughout the year. 
We have also had neighboring residents request to make better use of the green space at Marshall, 
saying it was too open, with not enough trees. One of those residents has already purchased trees 
and a bench for the park, but planting more trees is no longer suitable for this park. A wet meadow 
is a perfect solution to bring in more attractive plants that will actually work with the location and 
soil conditions of the area. In turn, the native plants installed will produce large root systems that 
will help soak up water in the rest of the park, leaving the surrounding turf in better condition for 
mowing. 
 
With a nearby drainage ditch that contains wetland plants, a wet meadow will relieve this ditch 
from becoming too flooded, as it takes on overflow from large rain events. Storm water 
management is a large issue moving forward in the Township, so more of our parks could be 
contributing to filtering runoff from the surrounding roads, as well as flood mitigation. If this 
project is successful, it would be a wonderful demonstration for other park areas that are suitable. 
Turf is not a useful plant for meeting any of the above objectives, so it is time to look for alternative 
solutions. 
 
Marshall Park - EGLE Wetlands Map Viewer 

 
(Above) This section of map indicates that Marshall Park is mostly made up of wetland soils. Turf is 
not a suitable plant to grow in these areas since the root systems are very shallow, at only a few 
inches long, and do not soak up enough water. 
 
Please see the back of this page to view the proposal from Vern Stephens who specializes in this 
kind of work. 

 



Designs By Nature – Proposal 
Proposal for Services 
Meridian Township 
January 25, 2022 

This proposal covers services to Meridian Township for establishing a wet meadow on .4 acres of 
township property, Marshall Park. The following are services proposed: 

 
Sedge Seed (Michigan genotype) 
1# PLS/.4 Acre      $385.00 
Seed pick-up and mixing    $125.00 
 
Seed installation/Herbicide Application 
Planting       $150.00 
Herbicide application/travel    $400.00 
Herbicide (Glyphosate)     $100.00 
 
Wildflowers (Michigan genotype) 
Wet meadow prairie species seed    $250.00 
10 Flats wet meadow plugs @ $40.00/flat   $400.00 
 
Wildflower Installation (September 2022)   $400.00 

Wildflower Seed Installation (After Nov 1, 2022)  $200.00 

Total  $2,410.00 
 
 

(Left) Original aerial of wet area to be 
converted. This area is where most of the 
water pools. The surrounding area does get 
saturated, but with .4 acres planted with 
deep roots, we hope to help dry up the 
surrounding area. 
 
 



          14. Site Visit
5280 Okemos Road

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us


14.



8. Additional Packet Items
Presented to Park Commission

May 10, 2022

mailto:maisner@meridian.mi.us



















































	05.10.2022 Park Commission Regular Meeting Packet
	May 10, 2022 Park Commission Meeting Agenda
	5. Agenda 05.10.2022
	5. Agenda cover page 05.10.2022
	6. Approval of Minutes cover page
	6. March 8, 2022 Park Commission Regular Meeting Minutes
	1. CALL MEETING TO ORDER
	2. ROLL CALL
	3. PUBLIC COMMENTS
	None
	5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	6. COMMUNICATIONS
	7. ACTION ITEMS
	8. DISCUSSION ITEMS
	10. PUBLIC COMMENTS - None
	11. ADJOURNMENT

	7. Communications cover page
	7.A.The Power of Parks to Address Climate Change
	7.B. Letter to Local Horse Farms
	7.C.Resident Complaint
	7.D.Communications MCC Evaluability Assessment
	8. Action Items cover page
	8. Park Commission Meeting Information 05.10.2022
	9. Discussion Items cover page
	9.A. Horses on Trails
	9.C.CIP
	9.D.Marshall Park Wetland Project.1
	9.D.Marshall Park Wetland Project.2
	14. Site Visit 5280 Okemos Road
	14.Site Visit cover page

	05.10.2022 Park Commission Meeting Packet additional items
	05.10.2022 Park Commission Meeting Packet additional items
	15.Additional items cover page


